
Clarifications to the call for tender COMP/2012/015 - The economic impact of 

modern retail on choice and innovation in the EU food sector 

 

Question Answer 

"We would like to check with you please 

whether proposals for the above tender can be 

submitted as a single tenderer or also as a 

consortium?" 

You can apply as a single tenderer or as a 

consortium.  

Please check section 9.3 of the tender 

specifications for further details and 

requirements in case of joint tenders. 

"Although I have been able to find all the other 

documents cited in the “Specifications to 

invitation to tender” two of them are an 

exception. They are the ones in footnotes 17 and 

18:  

- Power point presentation ("Innovation – 

Elements of definition"), provided by Mr. Galaski 

to the Food Task Force of DG COMP on 22 

October 2012 

- ERRT, "Discussion Paper – Measuring 

Innovation in Retail", submission to DG COMP, 

19 November 2012. 

Could you please tell me if they are publicly 

available documents and if so, where can I find 

them?" 

These documents are not publicly available. 

The Food Task Force asked these organizations 

(AIM and ERRT) to provide their view on the 

definition of innovation, in order to make sure 

the study would focus on the correct 

measurement of innovation and in order to 

help tenderers to fill in the concept of 

innovation in a way as agreed by relevant 

actors in the food sector.  

Section 3.9 of the tender specifications:  

"Please clarify what is meant by 'the Commission 

is entitled to have access to the database'. Will 

the commission require a license to be able to 

access and use the database? In our experience, 

usually licenses are for our own use, and we 

need to negotiate specific terms to allow clients 

to use it." 

The Commission would only require access to 

the database in order to check the type and 

quality of the data purchased/gathered by the 

contractor, not to use or manipulate the data 

itself. Therefore the Commission would not 

need any licenses that would allow it to make 

use of the data. 

Section 8.3.c of the tender specifications: 

"What type of evidence will you require as a 

'certificate of satisfactory execution'?  Will this 

have the form of a letter from the client stating 

their satisfaction with services provided? Are 

there alternative forms?" 

A certificate in the form of a letter from the 

client is required.  



Section 9.5 of the tender specifications:  

"Regarding the submission of the tender, we 

have a document in Spanish that shows the 

persons authorized to sign on its behalf. Do you 

require for this document to be translated into 

English?" 

There is no need to translate the document 

into English. 

"Our proposed team consists of several partner 

organisations and we intend to bid as a 

consortium, led by one of these organisations (as 

per paragraph 9.3 of the call for tender). One of 

the staff members in our proposed team has a 

professional employment relationship with 

several of the partners in our consortium.  

From the perspective of the consortium partners 

this does not present a conflict of interest. 

However, we wanted to confirm with you that 

you would not consider the professional 

affiliation of one of staff members with two 

partner organisations in our consortium as a 

conflict of interest with respect to the exclusion 

criteria (paragraph 8.2 & Annex III of the tender 

specifications)." 

 

It is not possible to reply to this question, 

because it is for the evaluation committee to 

consider if the tenderer has a conflict of interest 

against the documents submitted by the 

tenderer.  

A conflict of interest could arise in any situation 

that could compromise the impartial and 

objective performance of the contracts. A 

conflict of interest can arise from economic 

interests, political or national affinity, family or 

emotional ties or any other relations or shared 

interest detected by the evaluation committee. 

See also Article II.4 of the draft service contract, 

concerning conflicts of interest. 

"Is there prioritization by EU country?  Which 

countries are compulsory and must be part of 

the analyses?" 

As you can see in the tender specifications, the 

Commission does not require particular Member 

States to be included in the dataset.  Therefore, 

it is for the tenderers to propose a set of 

countries for which the data are available and 

which ensure EU representativeness (see § 3.3.1 

of the tender specifications: "the choice of how 

many and which MSs will be included in the 

database has to be made so as to ensure that the 

results of the study are representative of the 

modern retail landscape in the EU").  

As also mentioned in § 3.3.1 of the tender 

specifications,  representativeness is defined in 

terms of "retailers' concentration at local level" 

and "market structure (in terms of share of 

private labels' penetration and type of retailers 

(discounters, hypermarkets, supermarkets))".  

As indicated in §8.4 of the tender specifications, 

the quality and selection of the data (including 



the selection of Member States) is an important 

criterion to select the winning tender. Therefore, 

the argumentation in the tenderers' proposal on 

why certain Member States have (not) been 

included in the dataset has to be drafted 

carefully. 

"What is the definition of “EU food sector”, 

strictu sensu or does this also include household 

and personal care categories sold at the food 

retail?" 

Data regarding the "EU food sector" should only 

take into account food products. Other FMCGs 

often sold by retailers, such as personal care 

products, do not have to be included in the 

dataset and analysis. 

"I wanted to check whether there is actual need 

of evidence for our economic and financial 

capacity." 

Yes, evidence of the economic, financial, 

technical and professional capacity has to be 

provided. For further information, please check 

§8.3 of the tender specifications. 

"You outlined in your invitation that tenderers 

have to send in total four copies of the proposal 

and explained later in the letter the way of 

sending the tender to you at the EU: different 

envelopes laying in each other, probably to 

forward the tender internally. Now my question 

is, whether each envelope shall get four copies 

or whether in each envelope – including the first 

one – one copy of the tender shall be included?" 

Proposals to the tender have to be submitted in 

two sealed envelopes (an outer and inner 

envelope). The outer envelope contains the 

address as mentioned in the invitation to tender. 

On the inner envelope, you mention the same 

address as on the outer envelope and 

additionally you mark the wording as specified in 

the invitation to tender ("CALL FOR TENDERS – 

NOT TO BE OPENED BY THE INTERNAL MAIL 

DEPARTMENT). The inner envelope should again 

contain two sealed envelopes, one sealed 

envelope containing 4 copies of the financial 

tender, and another sealed envelope containing 

the 4 copies of the technical tender. 

 


